Ref: CB2/PL/CA

Members
present

vy 4
Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(2) 863/04-05
(These minutes have been seen
by the Administration)

Panel on Constitutional Affairs

Minutes of meeting

held on Thursday, 13 January 2005 at 4:30 pm
in the Chamber of the Legislative Council Building

: Dr Hon LUI Ming-wah, JP (Chairman)

Hon Jasper TSANG Yok-sing, GBS, JP (Deputy Chairman)
Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP

Hon Albert HO Chun-yan

Ir Dr Hon Raymond HO Chung-tai, S.B.St.J., JP
Hon LEE Cheuk-yan

Hon Martin LEE Chu-ming, SC, JP

Dr Hon David LI Kwok-po, GBS, JP

Hon Fred L1 Wah-ming, JP

Hon Margaret NG

Hon Mrs Selina CHOW LIANG Shuk-yee, GBS, JP
Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon CHEUNG Man-kwong

Hon CHAN Yuen-han, JP

Hon Bernard CHAN, JP

Hon CHAN Kam-lam, JP

Hon Mrs Sophie LEUNG LAU Yau-fun, SBS, JP
Hon LEUNG Yiu-chung

Hon SIN Chung-kai, JP

Dr Hon Philip WONG Yu-hong, GBS

Hon WONG Yung-kan, JP

Hon Howard YOUNG, SBS, JP

Dr Hon YEUNG Sum

Hon LAU Chin-shek, JP

Hon LAU Kong-wah, JP

Hon LAU Wong-fat, GBS, JP

Hon Miriam LAU Kin-yee, GBS, JP

Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP

Hon CHOY So-yuk

Hon Andrew CHENG Kar-foo

Hon Timothy FOK Tsun-ting, GBS, JP



Hon TAM Yiu-chung, GBS, JP

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, JP

Hon Albert CHAN Wai-yip

Hon Frederick FUNG Kin-kee, JP
Hon Audrey EU Yuet-mee, SC, JP
Hon Vincent FANG Kang, JP

Hon WONG Kwok-hing, MH

Hon LEE Wing-tat

Hon LI Kwok-ying, MH

Dr Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long

Hon Daniel LAM Wai-keung, BBS, JP
Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, SBS, JP
Hon MA Lik, JP

Hon Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen, SBS, JP
Hon Alan LEONG Kah-kit, SC

Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki

Dr Hon Fernando CHEUNG Chiu-hung
Hon CHEUNG Hok-ming, SBS, JP
Hon WONG Ting-kwong, BBS

Hon TONG Ka-wah, SC

Hon CHIM Pui-chung

Hon Patrick LAU Sau-shing, SBS, JP
Hon Albert Jinghan CHENG

Hon KWONG Chi-kin

Hon TAM Heung-man

Members : Hon Tommy CHEUNG Yu-yan, JP
absent Hon LEUNG Kwok-hung

Public officers : Item IV
attending

Mr Stephen LAM Sui-lung
Secretary for Constitutional Affairs

Mr Joseph LAI Yee-tak
Acting Permanent Secretary for Constitutional Affairs

Mr Raymond TAM Chi-yuen
Principal Assistant Secretary for Constitutional Affairs

Ms Julina CHAN Woon-yee
Principal Assistant Secretary for Constitutional Affairs



Action

Item V

Mr Stephen LAM Sui-lung
Secretary for Constitutional Affairs

Mr Joseph LAI Yee-tak
Acting Permanent Secretary for Constitutional Affairs

Clerk in : Mrs Percy MA
attendance Chief Council Secretary (2)3
Staff in : Mr Arthur CHEUNG
attendance Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 2
Mrs Eleanor CHOW
Senior Council Secretary (2)4
I. Confirmation of minutes of meetings

(LC Paper No. CB(2)588/04-05 — Minutes of special meeting on
29 November 2004)

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2004 were confirmed.

II.  Information papers issued since the last meeting

2. Members noted that the following papers had been issued since the last
meeting —
(a) LC Paper No. CB(2)506/04-05(01) — Letter dated 23 December

(b)

2004 from the Administration in response to the information
requested by Hon Margaret NG concerning the number of
"tendered" ballot papers issued in the 2000 and 2004 LegCo

elections; and

LC Paper No. CB(2)657/04-05 — Legislative timetable for the
2002 Chief Executive election.

III. Items for discussion at the next meeting
(LC Paper No. CB(2)607/04-05(01) — List of outstanding items for
discussion)

3. Members agreed to discuss the following items at the next meeting to be
held on 21 February 2005 —



Action

(a) Constitutional issues relating to prorogation of the Council; and
(b) Political party law (paragraph 49 below refers).

4. Ms Emily LAU suggested that the incident of Taipei Mayor MA
Ying-jeou being refused a visa to enter into Hong Kong should be discussed at
the next meeting of the Panel on Constitutional Affairs (CA Panel) or a joint
meeting with the Panel on Security. Mr Philip WONG said that the fact that
Immigration authorities had the discretionary power to refuse visa applications
and not to disclose the reasons for the refusal was not unique to Hong Kong. He
queried the need to conduct a meeting to discuss the matter. Some members
considered that as the decision not to grant a visit visa for Mayor MA was
unusual, political in nature and had aroused public concern, the Administration
should give an explanation to the public.

5. Members discussed the appropriate forum for the matter to be discussed.
Mr James TO, Chairman of the Security Panel, informed members that
arrangements were being made for the Panel on Security to discuss the matter.
The Secretary for Security (S for S) had agreed to attend the meeting and would
liaise with other relevant bureaux about the Administration’s attendance at the
meeting. Ms Emily LAU pointed out that as the Constitutional Affairs Bureau
(CAB) was responsible for handling issues relating to Taiwan, it was appropriate
for the CA Panel to discuss the matter. A few members belonging to the
Democratic Party said that when they requested to meet with the Chief
Executive (CE) on the matter, CE had arranged for the Secretary for
Constitutional Affairs (SCA), and not S for S, to receive them. It was obvious
that SCA was the responsible official. These members considered that the
matter should be discussed by the CA Panel or jointly with the Panel on Security,
and both SCA and S for S should be invited to attend the meeting. Some other
members held the view that the Panel on Security should hold a meeting and
invite members of the CA Panel to attend, given that matters in respect of
applications for visit visas fell under the policy portfolio of the Security Bureau.

6. SCA said that CAB was responsible for coordinating issues relating to
Taiwan. However, immigration policy in respect of applications for visit visas
was a matter for the Security Bureau. SCA further said that it might be more
appropriate for the Panel on Security to hold a meeting and invite members of
the CA Panel to attend. He indicated that he would attend the meeting should
members consider his attendance necessary.

7. The Chairman put the following two options to vote —

(a)  the Panel on Security to hold a meeting and invite members of the
CA Panel to attend; and

(b)  the CA Panel to hold a meeting and invite members of the Panel on
Security to attend.



Action

8. The Chairman declared that the majority of the members present at the
meeting voted in favour of option (a).

(Post-meeting note : The issue of “Immigration policy and procedures in
respect of applications for visit visas/entry permits” has been scheduled
for discussion at the meeting of the Panel on Security on 1 February 2005.
All LegCo Members have been invited to attend the meeting.)

IV. Motion proposed by Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki
(LC Paper No. CB(2)607/04-05(02) — Wording of the motion proposed
by Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki)

0. The Chairman said that members had agreed at the last meeting that the
motion proposed by Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki be dealt with at this meeting. The
wording of the motion was as follows —

“B“jﬁL ﬁﬂéﬁﬁiﬁ J%”E‘f[“‘ﬂ@bﬂﬁﬂgﬂl + 6 {%W‘ﬁ, F.J’Tﬁwﬁ?ﬂij?
% pJAH’E A = I;v:]gﬁ[ p‘f' MR uﬂn “ﬁmw
ELEI [ IS F'F:‘Tj ,pEﬁ

(Translation)

“That, regarding the consultation on the Fourth Report of the
Constitutional Development Task Force, this Panel requests that the
Administration should carry out an extensive and in-depth opinion poll;
the Task Force should also consult all people of Hong Kong on the specific
proposals set out in the Report, including setting a timetable for universal
suffrage.”

10. Dr KWOK explained the reasons for moving the motion. A copy of
Dr KWOK'’s speech is in Appendix I. Dr KWOK urged members to vote in
support of his motion.

11.  Mr Howard YOUNG said that constitutional development was an
important issue and would be widely debated in the Council in the coming
months. The Liberal Party considered that constitutional development must
progress in a gradual and orderly manner, and any proposals to amend the
methods for selecting CE in 2007 and for forming the Legislative Council
(LegCo) in 2008 (the “electoral methods™) must comply with the Basic Law and
the parameters set in the decision of the Standing Committee of the National
People’s Congress on 26 April 2004 (the NPCSC Decision). The Liberal Party
intended to consult its members who represented different sectors in the
community on the Fourth Report. The result of the consultation would be
submitted to the Task Force before expiry of the consultation on the Fourth




Action

Report on 31 March 2005. The Liberal Party did not see any strong need for the
Administration to conduct an opinion poll at this stage and would not support the
motion.

12. Dr YEUNG Sum said that Members belonging to the Democratic Party
supported the motion. He pointed out that the motion also sought to consult the
people of Hong Kong on the specific proposals set out in the Fourth Report. This
would provide an opportunity for the Administration to ascertain whether its
mainstream proposal would be accepted by the community.

13. At the invitation of the Chairman, SCA said that Dr KWOK’s motion
consisted of two parts. The first part called for the conduct of an opinion poll on
the Fourth Report of the Task Force on Constitutional Development (the Task
Force), and the second part called for the Task Force to consult the public on the
specific proposals for amending the “electoral methods” and a timetable for
universal suffrage. On the conduct of an opinion poll, SCA said that the Chief
Secretary for Administration (CS) had made clear the stance of the
Administration at the Council meeting on 15 December 2004 that it would not
rule out the possibility of conducting an opinion poll on the package of proposals
for the “electoral methods”. SCA further said that there were different avenues
to collect views from the public and an opinion poll was only one of the means.
The Task Force would organize seminars and forums to collect further views
from different sectors of the community on the issues set out in the Fourth
Report. He had been attending meetings of District Councils (DCs) to listen to
views of district representatives. The public could also put forth their views to
the Task Force by post, facsimile, e-mail or through the website.

14.  As regards the second part of the motion, SCA explained that the Fourth
Report summarized the spectrum of views on how the “electoral methods” could
be amended but had not provided any specific proposals on the ‘“electoral
methods”. At this stage, the Task Force did not have a mainstream proposal for
public consultation. On the timetable for implementing universal suffrage, SCA
said that the priority task of the Task Force was to formulate a package of
proposals for amending the “electoral methods™ in accordance with the NPCSC
Decision, although it would continue to listen to public views concerning the
timetable for universal suffrage and reflect these views to the Central
Authorities.

15.  SCA further said that in general, he did not share the views of Dr KWOK.
He made the following points —

(a) The Administration had not formed any view on universal suffrage.
He and the Secretary for Justice (SJ) had on different occasions
explained that universal suffrage could take the form of direct or
indirect elections. Some members of the public including Mr Eric
LI Ka-cheung, a former LegCo Member, had suggested that one of



Action

the models for universal suffrage could be for candidates to be
nominated by functional constituencies (FCs) or professional
organizations and elected by all registered electors. The
Administration would consider this view and other views received
on this issue;

(b)  As pointed out by Dr KWOK, the International Covenant on Civil
and Political Rights was applied to Hong Kong with certain
reservations. One of the reservations was that the Government
reserved the right not to apply Article 25 of the Covenant in so far
as the establishment of an elected Executive or Legislative Council
in Hong Kong was concerned. In taking forward constitutional
development, the Administration followed the Basic Law which
set out the blueprint in the first ten years after reunification. The
Administration would ensure that any proposals to amend the
“electoral methods” would comply with the Basic Law and the
NPCSC Decision. Constitutional changes that had been or would
be implemented in Hong Kong would not be inconsistent with
international covenants or domestic law as applied to Hong Kong;
and

(c) The views of the 870 respondents who had given views during
consultation on the Third Report could not be taken lightly, as they
represented the views of different sectors, including Members of
ExCo and LegCo, members of DCs, the academia, the legal and
other professional sectors, young people, ethnic minorities, etc.
The Task Force would conduct wider consultation on the Fourth
Report with a view to enhancing participation at the district level.
The Task Force welcomed LegCo Members, political parties and
groups to put forward practical proposals in the coming months.

16. Dr KWOK said that he was disappointed at SCA’s reply. He considered
that an opinion poll would provide an opportunity for the Administration to
directly consult the public, the result of which would help the Administration
improve its governance and communication with the people. In his motion, he
did not lay down any restrictions on the methods in conducting an opinion poll or
its scope. All he asked was a fair and credible opinion poll which was up to the
international standard. He said that the Administration should not be
apprehensive about facing the public. If the Administration did not give the
public an opportunity to express views, it would only drive them to take radical
actions and move further away from the Government. Dr KWOK further said
that as implementation of universal suffrage was an ultimate goal laid down in
the Basic Law, the Administration must address the question of the timetable for
universal suffrage. He urged members to support his motion.

17.  The Chairman put the motion to vote. Dr KWOK claimed a division.




Action

19 members voted for the motion

Mr Albert HO, Mr LEE Cheuk-yan, Mr Fred LI, Ms Margaret NG,
Mr CHEUNG Man-kwong, Mr SIN Chung-kai, Dr YEUNG Sum, Ms Emily
LAU, Mr Andrew CHENG, Mr Frederick FUNG, Ms Audrey EU, Mr LEE
Wing-tat, Dr Joseph LEE, Mr Alan LEONG, Dr KWOK Ka-ki, Dr Fernando
CHEUNG, Mr Ronny TONG, Mr Albert CHENG and Miss TAM Heung-man.

28 members voted against the motion

Mr James TIEN, Dr LUI Ming-wah, Mrs Selina CHOW, Miss CHAN Yuen-han,
Mr CHAN Kam-lam, Mrs Sophie LEUNG, Dr Philip WONG, Mr WONG
Yung-kan, Mr Jasper TSANG, Mr Howard YOUNG, Mr LAU Kong-wah,
Mr LAU Wong-fat, Ms Miriam LAU, Miss CHOY So-yuk, Mr TAM Yiu-chung,
Mr Abraham SHEK, Mr Vincent FANG, Mr WONG Kwok-hing, Mr LI
Kwok-ying, Mr Daniel LAM, Mr Jeffrey LAM, Mr MA Lik, Mr Andrew
LEUNG, Mr CHEUNG Hok-ming, Mr WONG Ting-kwong, Mr CHIM
Pui-chung, Mr Patrick LAU and Mr KWONG Chi-kin.

18.  The Chairman declared that the motion was negatived.

V. Briefing by the Secretary for Constitutional Affairs on the Chief
Executive’s Policy Address 2005
(Address made by the Chief Executive at the Council meeting on
12 January 2005

2005 Policy Agenda

LC Paper No. CB(2)646/04-05(01) - Paper provided by the
Administration on "2005 Policy Agenda")

19.  SCA briefed members on the initiatives of CAB set out in the CE’s Policy
Address 2005. A copy of his speaking note is in Appendix II.

Issues raised by members

Constitutional development

20. Mr Ronny TONG said that CE had already set out in his 1999 Policy
Address that one of the initiatives was to actively pursue democratic
development for Hong Kong. However, the Administration had adopted a
“couldn’t-care-less”™ attitude towards public’s aspirations for universal suffrage
in conducting public consultation on constitutional development. It had chosen
to listen to views from selected sectors which concurred with the
Administration’s stance. Mr TONG said that the Administration not only had




Action

the responsibility to listen to all the views expressed by the public, but also to
promote public discussions in the community on constitutional development.
Even though universal suffrage could not be achieved in 2007 and 2008, the Task
Force should formulate a proposal which was most conducive towards achieving
the ultimate goal of universal suffrage.

21.  SCA said that the Administration had all along been adopting a serious,
prudent and active approach to take forward constitutional development for
Hong Kong. In conducting public consultation, the Task Force had listened to all
the views expressed and reflected them in the reports published by the Task
Force. He was aware of pan-democratic Members’ support for universal
suffrage in the 2007 and 2008 elections. There were, however, organisations and
individuals who had expressed different views. The Administration remained of
the view that the proposal to be put forth on the “electoral methods” must
comply with the Basic Law and the parameters set in the NPCSC Decision. The
Task Force would continue to listen to views from the public in its current round
of consultation. In considering amendments to “electoral methods”, the Task
Force would work towards a package of proposals which provided wider public
participation and representation. He hoped that the package of proposals to be
put forth for the 2007 and 2008 elections would serve as a transition to achieving
universal suffrage.

22.  Mr Albert HO said that CE’s Policy Address had made no reference to the
accountability system for principal officials (POs) such as whether there were
any problems with the operation of the system and how POs were accountable to
the public. The way CE had handled past cases of resignation of POs and the
recent case of Mr LAM Woon-kwong had caused confusion to the public.
Mr HO also expressed concern about the executive and legislature relationship.
He asked how the Administration would respond to the motions moved by
Members and passed by the Council, such as the motions on “Implementing
small class teaching” and “Development of the West Kowloon Cultural District”.
He said that the executive and legislature relationship could not be improved if
the Administration did not respect the consensus of the Council.

23.  SCA said that the design of the accountability system was to allow a team
of politically appointed top Government officials to assist CE in his work. The
executive was accountable to LegCo and the public. In his personal view, the
implementation of the accountability system was a right step in political
development. SCA further said that when a major political incident occurred,
there were bound to be different views as to whether the PO concerned should
remain in office, step down, or tender an apology to the public. He pointed out
that with implementation of the accountability system, POs had acted as a
“firewall” and would accept full responsibility for serious political blunders.
This would allow civil servants to remain politically neutral.



Action

- 10 -

24.  SCA said that the concerted effort of the executive and the legislature was
required to improve the relationship between the two institutions. As a bid to
improve the communication between the executive and legislature, LegCo
Members from some major political parties had been appointed onto ExCo,
following implementation of the accountability system. The Administration
would continue to explore ways on how to better enhance cooperation between
the executive and the legislature.

25.  Mr Albert HO referred to the strong criticism made by CE in paragraph
18 of the Policy Address which stated that “We also lacked a sense of crisis,
political sensitivity as well as the necessary experience and capability to cope
with political and economic changes”. He asked whether these inadequacies
arose as a result of an ineffective political system including ExCo, LegCo and
the accountability system for POs.

26.  SCA responded that all major policy decisions were made collectively by
ExCo. The political system of Hong Kong, including ExCo, LegCo and the
relationship between the executive and legislature, had been evolving. It was
necessary for the Administration to make reflections from time to time on
whether the changes were appropriate. Implementation of the accountability
system for POs and further democratisation of the electoral system were some of
the improvements made to the political system, and continuous improvements
were necessary to perfect the system.

27. Dr YEUNG Sum and Mr Martin LEE said that paragraph 19 of CE’s
Policy Address stated that “After much soul searching and a review of the
successes and failures of our governance, my colleagues and I have taken stock
of experience gained and lessons learnt”. They asked what lessons had SCA
learnt on the issue of constitutional development.

28. SCA said that in terms of constitutional development, his biggest
challenge was to achieve consensus on a proposal on the “electoral methods”
within the community. Since the promulgation of the Basic Law in 1990, it was
the first time that Hong Kong faced such an important issue. Given that this was
unprecedented, he was exploring ways to formulate a proposal that would
incorporate public views, strengthen democratisation, and at the same time pave
the way for constitutional development in Hong Kong. He would make the best
endeavour to achieve tripartite consensus (two-thirds majority of all LegCo
Members, CE and NPCSC) and cooperation from four parties (LegCo Members
returned by FC and geographical constituencies, CE and NPCSC).

29.  Dr YEUNG Sum said that the Democratic Party had continued to pursue
universal suffrage for the elections in 2007 and 2008 despite the NPCSC
Decision. He asked whether the Democratic Party was giving our country
worries and trouble.




Action

- 11 -

30. SCA said that Hong Kong was a free society and its people had the
freedom of expression. He respected the views and stance of LegCo Members
from different political parties and groups on the issue of constitutional
development. At the same time, he hoped that Members could likewise accept
and respect the constitution of the People’s Republic of China, the constitutional
order laid down in the Basic Law, and the NPCSC Decision in considering
constitutional development. SCA stressed that both the Government and LegCo
Members had the constitutional duty to come up with a proposal to amend the
“electoral methods” with a view to achieving progress towards greater
democracy.

31.  Ms Emily LAU was dissatisfied that constitutional development was not
included in the 11 most concerned issues set out in paragraph 27 of CE’s Policy
Address. Referring to paragraph 24 of the Policy Address which stated that the
Government would “help those who still have doubts about or feel antagonistic
towards the Central Government to change their minds”, Ms LAU asked how the
Administration intended to change the minds of dissidents and why it did not
consider changing the minds of the Central Authorities so that the latter would
respond to the aspirations of the people of Hong Kong for universal suffrage.

32.  SCA said that the Administration attached great importance to the issue
of constitutional development which was covered in paragraph 26 of CE’s Policy
Address. The Administration respected the views of LegCo Members. It would
not attempt to change, nor was it capable of changing, the thinking of LegCo
Members. The Administration, however, had the responsibility to make Hong
Kong people understand the spirit and principles of the Central Government’s
policies towards Hong Kong. At the same time, it would reflect to the Central
Government the views of Hong Kong people towards constitutional
development. CAB played the role of a co-ordinator to bridge the gap among CE,
LegCo and NPCSC in this respect.

33. Dr KWOK Ka-ki said that he was disappointed at CE’s Policy Address in
that it had failed to provide any work plan for implementing the ultimate aim of
universal suffrage. He said that the Administration was “beating about the bush”
in addressing the question of constitutional development.

34,  SCA said that the Administration maintained the view that constitutional
development should progress in a gradual and orderly manner. He reiterated that
the “electoral methods” could be amended to provide for wider public
participation which was a step conducive towards achieving universal suffrage.
He said that how the ultimate aim of universal suffrage could be achieved was
not cast in stone, it had to be explored step by step. SCA further said that the
Administration had endeavoured to create an environment that would attract
political talents to participate in elections and strengthen the development of
political parties and groups.



Action

- 12 -

35. Mr Howard YOUNG asked about the legislative process for amending
the number of members of the Election Committee and the composition of the
Election Committee. SCA said that amendments to the number of members of
the Election Committee in Annex I to the Basic Law must be made with the
endorsement of a two-thirds majority of LegCo Members and the consent of CE,
and must be reported to NPCSC for approval. Amendments which sought to
expand the electorate size of the Election Committee would be made by way of
local legislation. In further response to Mr YOUNG on the legislative timetable,
SCA said that a consensus must emerge from the community within 2005 on the
proposals to amend Annexes | and II. The Administration could then proceed
with the necessary legislative process relating to amending Annexes I and II and
local legislation.

Promotion of Basic Law

36. Mr CHAN Kam-lam said that the promotional activities launched on the
Basic Law had been effective. He noted that the APIs (Government
Announcements in the Public Interest) broadcasted before the daily evening
television news had been criticised by some people as “brainwash”. He
disagreed with the criticism and urged the Administration not to give up its
promotional activities easily. He suggested that the Administration should take
proactive steps to strengthen promotion of the Basic Law and in doing so, should
associate the Basic Law with people’s daily activities.

37.  SCA agreed that promotion of the Basic Law would be effective when its
theme was linked to the daily activities of the people. He said that one of the
APIs that had been produced was to let people know that their right to travel,
enter or leave Hong Kong was safeguarded by the Basic Law. The
Administration would continue to promote the Basic Law in this direction.
There were also promotional activities targeted at young people. For instance,
promotional materials on the Basic Law were provided to primary and secondary
schools to facilitate them to educate students. Competitions had also been
organized for school students to design Basic Law promotional programmes.

38.  Inresponse to Mr Martin LEE’s question, SCA said that having reviewed
the work of CAB in the past year, he considered that more could have been done
in promoting the Basic Law. In 2005, the Administration would put in more
resources to encourage organisations to participate in the promotion of the Basic
Law. It would also organize activities with a view to enhancing the community’s
understanding of the Basic Law and the “One Country, Two Systems”.

Pan-Pearl River Delta Regional Cooperation

39. Mr LAU Kong-wah said that paragraphs 13 and 14 of the
Administration’s paper on 2005 Policy Agenda (LC Paper No.
CB(2)646/04-05(01)) mentioned that the governments of the nine Mainland




Action

- 13 -

provinces and region in the Pan-Pearl River Delta (PPRD) Region and the two
Special Administrative Regions (the “9+2” governments) signed a PPRD
Regional Cooperation Framework Agreement (the Agreement) in June 2004.
Mr LAU asked about the cooperation projects brought about by the Agreement
since June 2004 and whether the Administration would consider the proposal put
forth by the Democratic Alliance for Betterment of Hong Kong (DAB) on the
setting up of a secretariat to deal with issues relating to the Agreement.

40.  SCA said that the Administration took note of the proposal of DAB. He
said that there were two tiers in promoting regional cooperation. The first tier
involved the Administration which would actively participate in PPRD and
foster co-operation with the “9+2” governments based on the framework laid
down by the Agreement. The second tier involved private enterprises which
would set up business and enter into the markets in the Mainland. The role of
CAB was to coordinate the Administration’s effort in participating in the
relevant areas of cooperation. Given that the Agreement had been signed for
only seven months, the Administration needed more time to identify areas of
cooperation. While the Administration had a good understanding of the
neighbouring Guangdong province, it was necessary to gain broader
understanding of the development and policies of the respective provinces and
regions farther away from Hong Kong. To this end, the Administration had
launched a visit programme to the PPRD region. So far, relevant government
bureaux and departments had discussed co-operation with some of the “9+2”
governments in the areas of health, education and trade. Of particular
significance were cross-boundary infrastructure projects such as the Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge. The Administration would continue to explore
and expand the scope of cooperation within PPRD for mutual prosperity.

41. Mr Albert HO said that in order to understand and support the
Government’s policy for PPRD regional cooperation, there was a need for
LegCo Members to visit the region. He asked whether the Administration would
arrange a visit programme for LegCo Members to the PPRD region, given that
there was no established channel for LegCo Members to directly communicate
with Mainland officials at present.

42.  SCA said that he took note of Mr HO’s request. He said that at present,
visit programme to PPRD region was only arranged for different government
bureaux and departments and these visits focused on provinces farther away
from Hong Kong. He said that he adopted a positive attitude towards enhancing
the communication between political parties and officials of the Central
Authorities. Where there were opportunities, the Administration would make
appropriate arrangements.



Action

- 14 -

Review of roles, functions and composition of DCs

43.  Referring to paragraph 21 of CE’s Policy Address, Ms Miriam LAU
asked how the Administration would enhance its support for DCs. She also
asked about the timing for completing the review of DCs.

44.  SCA said that the Administration had not formed any view on the matter.
He had met with the chairmen and deputy chairmen of DCs and some DC
members. Some of them had requested for more resources in assisting local
residents, more power in managing district affairs, and an enhanced advisory
role to the Government. The review would commence in the fourth quarter of
2005 and would be completed in 2006. To facilitate the review, a consultation
document would be issued. The Administration had yet to decide on the period
for consultation. Any legislative amendments to the District Council Ordinance
as a result of the review would be dealt with in 2006.

Taiwan affairs

45.  Referring to paragraph 19 of the 2005 Policy Address, Dr YEUNG Sum
asked what lessons had SCA learnt in respect of cross-strait relationship.

46.  SCA said that cross-strait relationship was a sensitive and complex issue.
The Administration adopted a positive approach towards the matter and would
continue to enhance exchanges with Taiwan based on the established policies
and principles. Since CAB took up Taiwan affairs, he had seized every
opportunity to brief Taiwan delegations on Hong Kong’s position and
development.  The delegations received included professionals, media,
industrial and business sectors, and academia.

47. Mr LEE Wing-tat said that the refusal of Mayor MA Ying-jeou’s visa
application had dampened the relationship between Taiwan and Hong Kong and
hurt the feelings of the compatriots in Taiwan, given that Mayor MA was in
support of the reunification with China. Mayor MA’s application was rejected
simply because he had expressed view on the anti-sedition law. Mr LEE further
said that according to the official source from Taiwan, Mayor MA had applied
for a visit visa together with a group of other applicants whose applications had
been approved. However, S for S had said in a radio programme that Mayor
MA’s application had never been rejected. In his view, S for S was indirectly
telling a lie. The delay in processing an application was tantamount to rejecting
the application. The integrity of S for S was called into question as he did not tell
all the facts. He considered that the decision to reject the visa application was
wrong and inappropriate.

48.  SCA said that S for S had told the truth and he could not accept Mr LEE’s
comment that S for S was telling a lie. He further said that the situation in
Taiwan was complex. Taiwan’s inclination towards independence had adversely



Action

- 15 -

affected cross-strait relationship. He firmly believed that the community in
Hong Kong at large supported Taiwan’s reunification with the motherland and
unity of one country. SCA added that cross-strait relationship would not be
affected by an isolated incident. In the longer term, the Administration would
continue to promote exchanges on various fronts with Taiwan. If Mayor MA
applied for a visit visa in future, the Immigration Department would consider his
application on the basis of existing policy and legislation.

VI. Political party law
(LC Paper No. CB(2)607/04-05(03) - Paper provided by the
Administration on "Political party law"

IN17/04-05 - Information note on "Views on Political Party Law in Hong
Kong" prepared by the Research and Library Services Division of the
LegCo Secretariat)

49.  Mr LAU Kong-wah proposed and members agreed to defer the discussion
of the item until the next meeting.

VII. Any other business

50.  The Chairman reminded members that a special meeting would be held
on Saturday, 15 January 2005 from 9:30 am to 1:00 pm to receive views on “Pros
and cons of the existing political structure and the implications on good
governance/The executive and the legislature relationship/The system and role
of the civil service” from deputations.

51.  The meeting ended at 6:32 pm.

Council Business Division 2
Legislative Council Secretariat
17 February 2005




Bfsx |
(Appendix I)

2005 & 1 B 13 Hi AR/ vEE R
SR EHE B AVEERS
B AEETERAE

&%ﬁﬁﬁ?% e -

AR AR @ BT A e ( BNk ) —BRH] - mEEE
%A@%%FW RIEEEZH RIEH -

BN (EAE ) BIU+AEBETH - (TEREBE R B —ERERZA
RWELREGERIEFRAREEEL - KB+ RRTH
VLAY BT EE R EEE A

BRI RES ) B+ (S RERMBGERER]
BIFRAHD ) BB SR R ESE AR AR - 1R B
IRFEE B RBIFR AT  BER ( BANE ) CEHEHIZE R A
SLEE - MEIERARREMEILE B ~ 8 i SXCPEREUA
SEER] FERL TR UL - SR PUsR S FE A A TR Ot R [ 5% -

x EREHImE_EH AP EORFF B A E A 2 - 12
2L DEREIIEL  DURFFERREH S - (HRE RS #RE
Brilidr - BRHAR T DRBA ) RREERFEELZIGRR -

Ol

PR HGE [ERE - ERAFEBUFEHEE © @RS & U
AL R R - E S REUTAZ A RHIRE -
TR -

2007 FE{TELET R, 2008 T ETHE AU SRS - HEBIE
ST S - 2003 RGBT A 23 T AR
SRR - A E R - AR RIS ES LB - 8
PO 25 TR TR B+ % 07 R 08 #E gty
R WS EILRELL -



-2-

£ 12 H 20 HAYBUHIMHATE 3 - RS RE T AR A EN
DhRErH D B RURA R E R - R R RIFRIRER A2

A FESER T - R R BUT L B E AR A R A
o AIESEAEE RS - PEPEERE - s Em AR HERRE

HEF -

HEFZEEAGEEY . EmfFRBUFIHEE S - HE T H
HerE R EfE AR - NEDUBRERILVEFE o S HBUR ] Kk
HUET AT A B A RN - BERRF E EaSalss » B O HERE
BREBGHAER - BUFEEHRE 0 Tk - REESRE —E#
bida -

HEFERF B BUFRUGET 2B REHRE - WEEAEEY] 2007
FATER'E K 2008 17 E gk B HVE B - SR ISR S E U
3 4 EETFREMIRYIFENIINE - BIA0%E 21 HFORTERE#R] 1L
FEATE R AYIRF R 25 36 E/NERENT Fe OB UH s iR ThRERH Al
% o BB S ERY TRANE - HBUFREGEATE - 28
=R S e s AT B NE T BIRE (R )2 900 NHUREEIE) <
NG JRE BRI E AN R AR E Mt - 82—
IR - BRPBURAESR VUSRS & rH R R T B IR 2T
RFEe - BERTLE AR o BUR AR R el T

A RSB HES [l —

A RIRRERE T BIEREMA G &3 ( ARENREIEHE
FIBIRR A ) EH RS E VB DL ) BEERr R - S RN
BUEMERIBIER A ) H 1976 FBia LA E B E i - 1991 4
EEHIE T BHEAEEZEGEG] ) 180D RRERRIBUE A B
N ) B EEBIIGSL » i AE ERTAMIERE - [IEDIK - 1R
BE AT NEER (AR ) B ="1T1 (S REFABGARER]
ROK) ) AER B E AR -

FEERAE 1976 SR HEE RANHURT - [RIRFE I LL IRE Rl - Horp—
THEFHEHE KR ey - B+ IR E B T E
22 THEBRELAS KNP - AEERIRE - AFIEAZR
TR LB R AR E R TG AR B LAY - B R R R
NSRRI - H ( &S ARG ) tha sk - K
HEER BT R LR SR R R — LA HR R SCE N

HBIFR AR TEA LS -



-3-

o EAEZEGZEEMEARS AT ( BB G EFE RIS )
—XXRER - BRSO R E R B o 55— (P B B R AR Y
PERYRTRE ~ 5SRO R ATHE A SE — R B RO Je iR R ([T -
ABATECHE A T O s BT 2 a A 2007 44
2008 FEETTHY R B M iE I RoB Y BUH 3 R R RL SR
NHEBR - ZEHYER FEELARE R - ANELETTRUES - RN ER
PCEEIRTT BRI BRg T 2= RE R - 56— RERRREERR LA
NIEMTEHE - BRRESEFEE - BFEGEZ IR E B R GE
Z IR RLEAGRAT: -

ERARIRREE - BUS AR EZ M —HE A ET » B2 IEREEE# - 55
R AR =R EENEEESAE] R mEAE 900
AZHEREY - BOSEN ARG 2 FERAYR PG RS 8 H
G REHhER L 07 K 08 FEAYE S - BURFIEEA(E 2005 AR rfiz pl A3
& » TAERLATEEBH - bR S - HEUFRIOEANE » BRCR -
LUNET 5 3GETT#ER - BREEEHCN TEREETR - MaTEE
17 B e 22 Bl PR T BRI T 2

FERL M REIE 2 - SEEm IR R (R BURE S E & 3SR — AP
HSCRIERIRER » ERMEEEREN R - KECRAMEHRE »
& REFE AR IR - B AR A A IE TR RE rl 7 HY 508 05 5ha 1 KA
A 0 T B2 BSCRFILERE -



Bdgx 11
(Appendix I1)
ey FBLE E
(2005 # 1 ® 13 p)
= 0071 =& *’a?fv:%‘?
BRI EREBELEF T R

¢ FedlHark 2005 E S FCHATIR DT - KA E o ARE S X enfh g v =
R R E N g

= 00~ &z iz E

(o]

¢ ;&awgwgﬁ@:oo:&i@wﬁﬂ%%ifoﬁﬂ%%%%+£
favm%ié’ﬁ SR e b Fol g MFFEER LB RE S
BECIBERELRPTLRL A KEY AP E AR AREERLL
FREFSIGE P eEmE o NP EED A RAL Lo d Ae g
AEFTHRE HORIFRE DL L w57 5 01 (72 GRR

WA - AP ARTEAT e RETE 0 AEDT I HLF -

¢ %%+£%2&w&ﬂié’ﬁg?uﬁﬁ#ﬁo&%w%ﬁ+@%%%
g Mam %o agF 2RI BEL 25> AP g e BpL
PR S ZRAFL TP EIAE LR PR L S AH S E LR
EFRFRBArP B OO0 £ 75tk T2 200N & 22 g eng 4 P42 o

i RRENEd S HE e

¢ DR R ARFAF ALY BT S EAPRERHRRE SN
Skt B HRRE LI

W

¢ AP EEAREY AR EE S CF S BERIEEOLIT M ALY M
Bk ENE I M md oty o



2
¢ FdlERAe fraAERLEFX 20 - B ES G ‘é’péigév”:& d ~
AEAdRE AT EAEA LT - B AFTREW A Y AL ER A

PEDERATFRLES 6 PE R

R (Fhariz)

¢ G- EoAPAKR (AAE) 2R BET BT Tk (A
20 BIE AR S b PR R YR F AT R B E o Blde (A A2
FraggprFio (Rr2) f# Lo ¥ 253 A5E o

¢ SRHR PRI BRI APLAE FERE PR AR RS
P Ramidh e AR E R A ERTRE L DL FT AL g o R

FT G 1 e BRI M A B B4 SRR R D - F

¢ JER(ARZ)FF LT EE L FHULE-ATH LR LB T L TR
BhkEBARL RR LSS FECT AH T - RAH ) BRI (A A2) ann
e

IR A BB LT

¢ LEBLEEFE G REAPEREHIBL L IR LR LT B
Ly P,;}j’;%{\., % o

¢ EHCAREEFONN > AT -WAF 2 p e ERE R ALY EF
ﬁ“ﬁf{T?“”%ﬂm&ﬁ”mwmmF FT X FABOEREE
LAER AR B d TR AR TR £ BB L BB A S
PRARHE B 1 e it 4 e 40 B o

¢ Sk 4 Liveh e PAZBERL:

> ¥ LR A AR



-3 -

PRI G LBARGEER Gk AP RN (R BB ELT

> O FZANBRABIPE EEIRT BTV EIHAETAOLEET Y

ERELT DA RED H o

F -G T hEAPEEKE ERB AP LY DL T HEHE T
GBS FCR A R AP e BR T H LY Ry BRSSP T
et 1 2 Bl 487 A2 3y Be R A W LiAkzE 4 F

T B AP EEHRD Y B EE PR ST W § RS § W

ikl B it S AL

i
NY
=g
F
=
T
mE
<
R

FOEIRE & R ST BRI § SR
Feriag poo AP g - HiadEp L iF

-~ 00w £ 2 €58

¢ cp bt 2000 EEpTMARP s s RArE S # L ¢ w e OO
EFEEFOE

¢ FrAPAE - BAATBEERAR G RERDFR - JKRIRAE
S EREEET ES T L NS R N I N R
BRI FE G AL EELR -

¢ HlE IR A G RO o R g et R LR § e
ﬁ;‘% I,Z)Ilé-;f f

¢ APIFPLAEITRN =BT AL X FREFTRIEL

FLAE A A

S RRIE-T Lo





